
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 16 December, 2025 
 

2:30pm 
 

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 



 



 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
 

DATE at 2:30pm Ask for: Ruth Emberley 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 03000 416892 

   
 
 

 
Membership (9) 
 
Reform UK (5): Ms L Kemkaran, Mr B Collins (Chair), Mr M Harrison, Ms G Foster 

and Mr M Brown 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): 
 

Mr T Prater 
 

Conservative (1): Mr A Kennedy 
 

Green (1) 
 
Labour (1) 

Rich Lehmann 
 
Ms C Nolan 
 

 
Webcasting Notice 

 
Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site or by any member of the public or press present.  The Chairman will confirm if 
all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council. 
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to 
have your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately. 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

  
1 Apologies and Substitutes  
 
2 Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting  
 



3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 4 September 2025 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
4 Committee Review (Pages 7 - 14) 
 
5 2024/25 Combined Member Grant Report (Pages 15 - 26) 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

 
Monday 8 December 2025 
Benjamin Watts 
Deputy Chief Executive 
03000 416814 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 
SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 
 MINUTES of a meeting of the Selection and Member Services Committee held in 
the Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 4 
September 2025. 
 
PRESENT: Ms C Nolan, Mr T Prater, Mr B Collins, Mr M Harrison, Mrs G Foster, 
Mr M Brown, Mr H Rayner and Mr S Dixon 
 
IN ATTENDANCE:  Mr Ben Watts (General Counsel), Mr Tristan Godfrey (Senior 
Governance Manager) and Miss Ruth Emberley (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

 
 
13. The Election of the Chair  
(Item 1) 
 
1. Mr Maxell Harrison proposed, and Ms Georgia Foster seconded, that Mr Brian 

Collins be elected as Chair of the Committee. There were no further 
nominations. 

 
2. RESOLVED that Mr Brian Collins be elected Chair of the Committee. 
 
14. Apologies and Substitutes  
(Item 2 ) 
 
Apologies were received from Ms Linden Kemkaran with Mr Spencer Dixon acting as 
substitute and Mr Andrew Kennedy with Mr Harry Rayner acting as substitute.  
 
15. Minutes of the meeting held on the 27 February 2025  
(Item 3) 
 
1. It was held that the minutes of the meeting which took place on the 27 

February 2025 were an accurate record and that a paper copy be signed by 
the Chair.   

 
16. Induction Update (verbal)  
(Item 4) 
 
1. The verbal update was provided by the General Counsel, Mr Ben Watts.  The 

following key points were highlighted: 
 

a) Attendance for new Member training had been high and for most 
briefing sessions, above 50%.   

 
b) Group leaders would be notified of the Members who had not attended 

the preliminary training sessions, particularly around core areas such as 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2 

the Kent County Council budget and governance arrangements. The 
benefits of attendance for these areas would be highlighted.  

 
c) Some Members had welcomed the opportunity for further development 

on introductory level items and training would be provided. 
 

d) A further programme of activity was being developed to allow Members 
to move into an intermediate stage of training and this would be 
circulated in due course.  Feedback from the Committee in relation to 
the delivery of training, development and induction was welcomed. 

 
2. In relation to Member comments and questions the following was said: 
 

a) Attendance at development sessions and comprehension were two 
different things: the possibility of implementing a self-check appraisal 
after a session to check understanding and to reflect could be explored. 
Suggestions of further sources for learning could be included. 

 
b) Members acknowledged the amount of work Mr Watts and his team 

had conducted in the preparation and delivery of Member Induction 
Development.  Mr Watts paid tribute to Mrs Kay Goldsmith who 
designed and led the project. 

 
3. RESOLVED Members noted the verbal update. 
 
17. Standards Independent Person Appointment  
(Item 5) 
 
1.  The item was delivered by the General Council, Mr Ben Watts. The following 

key points were highlighted: 
 

a) The appointment of an independent person to the Standards 
Committee sought to increase capacity and ensured resilience by 
having an independent person available to consider code of conduct 
issues. 

 
b) Mr George will continue to be an independent person, however the 

paper sought the Committee’s permission to conduct a recruitment 
exercise for up to an additional two independent persons, to ensure the 
continued availability of the statutory post.  

  
2.  RESOLVED that the Committee Members would delegate to the Monitoring 

Officer the authority, in consultation with the Leaders of the Political Groups, to 
carry out a recruitment exercise for up to two Independent Persons and make 
recommendations for appointment to County Council. 

 
18. Outside Bodies Member Appointments  
(Item 6) 
 
1.         The item was delivered by Democratic Services Officer, Ruth Emberley. 
  
2.         The paper was taken as read and the following key points was highlighted  

Page 2



 

3 

to Members: 
  

a)    The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 political proportionality 
principles did not apply to Outside Body appointments, although the 
County Council’s convention in recent years had been that 
appointments were shared between the Political Groups on a 
proportional basis, insofar that it was possible. 

  
b)        It was explained to Members that the Committee previously agreed an 

Outside Bodies Protocol (provided to Members in Appendix 2 of the 
report) that provided a framework around the activities of the 
Committee.  This framework was intended to be used as a reference 
document for individuals nominated and for nomination. 

  
c)     The four Local Government Association groups included in Appendix 1 

were politically proportional and therefore Members of these are 
nominated by the Political Groups.  The details of these appointments 
were being confirmed and an updated would be provided once the 
details have been made and confirmed with the relevant Groups. 

  
d)      The Aylesham and District Community Workshop Trust had updated 

their Terms of Reference, which had been approved by the Trustees. 
The updates included the removal of the requirement for Kent County 
Council to appoint a Member. The change would be proposed at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, scheduled for the 25 November 
2025. Consequently, the Trust had been removed from the list. 

  
e)   The Rochester Bridge Trust was currently reviewing their Constitution.  

The Trust intended to remove one of the positions for Kent County 
Council. There were currently 2 posts nominated by KCC, one of which 
is currently vacant. The Trust intends to delete the post currently held 
by Ms Sarah Hohler at the end of her term on 31 May 2026 and 
therefore the Committee was asked to nominate a Member to fill the 
vacancy for the remainder of the second, vacant, post to 31 May 2027.  
Thereafter an appointment to a 4-year term appointment would be 
requested from KCC.  

  
f)        Efforts were underway to establish whether appointments were  

 required for the Duke of York Military School. An update would be    
 provided to the Committee. 

  
g)       Member interest had been expressed by some Members in relation  
         to Gatwick Airport Consultative Committee and the Southern  
         Regional Flood and Coastal Committee. These appointments were  
         subject to the process set out in Section 3 of the Outside Bodies  
         protocol. 

  
h)      All nominated Members would be provided with a copy of the  
         Outside Body Protocol. 

 
3. Mr Watts highlighted to the following key points to Members: 
 

Page 3



 

4 

a)    It was important to recognise that the level of personal liability  
     which occurred when someone was appointed as a Trustee also  

required a level of indemnity, support and advice to be provided to any 
individual in that position.  Mr Watts confirmed that a wrap  
around support service would be provided to any Member who took on 
that responsibility, to ensure that the liabilities and risks were fully 
understood.  

 
b) In many circumstances, Members were indemnified by KCC as they 

were appearing on behalf of the County Council, but where a Member 
acted in a way contrary to the interests of the County Council, this could 
disrupt their indemnity. 

 
4. In answer to Member questions, the following was said: 
 

a) During the previous administrative cycle, the merits of filling the 
positions with Councillors from a range of political parties was broadly 
recognised. While the positions were not allocated as an absolute, 
proportional, number, the appointments had been carried out by 
Member discussion and agreement. 

 
b) Historically, several factors for selecting Members were considered, 

such as the geography of the outside body organisation, particular 
interests or Member personal political preference.  

 
c) The Selection and Member Services Committee was responsible for 

making the decision to appoint Members to serve on outside body 
organisations.  If the Committee made the decision to not appoint Mr 
Watts to effectively organise this (in accordance with the 
recommendations) then the decision to facilitate the appointments 
rested with the Committee to organise.  Mr Watts confirmed that the 
Committee was not bound by any decision of the predecessor 
administrative cycle. 

 
5. Mr Rayner confirmed that he would like to be considered for nomination for 

both the Kent Association of Local Council and the Kent Downs National 
Landscape Joint Advisory Committee.  Mr Rayner had been involved with both 
organisations, in particular the Kent Association for Local Councils, and 
indicated that he would like to continue in his role.   

 
6. Members indicted their preference to approach Councillors with a clear set of 

rules, guidance and criteria in respect of the outside body appointments as this 
would provide all Members with an equal opportunity to nominate themselves.  
Mr Watts confirmed that, if it was the will of the committee, he would draft an 
email to disseminate to Members which reflected these terms. 

 
7. It was proposed by Mr Prater, and seconded by Ms Nolan, that the Monitoring 

Officer would contact Members to explore appetite for nominations to the 
various outside body organisations; if the number of Members interested did 
not exceed the number of positions available, the Committee would delegate 
the responsibility to appoint to the Monitoring Officer. If there were more 
Member requests than vacancies, the Monitoring Officer would return to the 

Page 4



 

5 

Committee and set out the situation in a report and the Committee would then 
consider how to manage multiple applications for a single organisation.  

 
The Committee voted unanimously in favour of the proposal. 
 
8. RESOLVED that the Monitoring Officer will: 
 

o Notify Members in writing of the criteria and responsibilities of Outside 
Body appointments; 

 
o Prepare an updated report for the next meeting of the Committee with 

information of which appointments remain to be made.  In the event 
more requests than vacancies had been made, the Monitoring Officer 
would assist the Committee to consider how to multiple applications for 
a single organisation 

 
o Formally confirm appointments, once the nominee has confirmed their 

acceptance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



By:   Joel Cook – Democratic Services Manager 
  
To:   Selection and Member Services Committee – 16 December 2025 
 
Subject:  Committees Review 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out proposals for consideration in relation to changing the number of 
Committees, adjusting relevant terms of reference and confirming the arrangements 
for managing transition of required activity. 
 
 
Introduction 
 
1. This report sets out proposals for delivering the work of the Council Committees 

in a more efficient way and reduces the number of Committees and meetings 
while still meeting statutory and Constitutional requirements. 
 

2. The Council is required to establish and operate a number of Statutory 
Committees and in many cases, the Council is required to undertake specific 
functions.  There is some flexibility as to how the Council seeks to manage 
these and the report explores options to deliver the same functions via fewer 
Committees. 

 
3. Alongside the review of the non-Executive Committees, the Leader has 

undertaken a review of Cabinet Committee arrangements and proposals for 
change are shared in this paper for information. 

 
4. Options and recommendations for review are set out below in the relevant 

sections. 
 
Ordinary Committees 
 
5. The Council operates the following main non-Executive Committees: 

 
- Scrutiny Committee 
- Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
- Governance & Audit Committee 
- Electoral and Boundary Review Committee 
- Personnel Committee 
- Planning Applications Committee 
- Regulation Committee 
- Selection and Member Services Committee 
- Pension Fund Committee 
- Kent Flood Risk Management Committee 
- Standards Committee 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
In some cases, the above are supported by a range of sub-committees 
exercising specific functions.   
 

6. The Committees which must remain due to their specific functions and 
requirements are: 
- Scrutiny Committee 
- Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
- Governance & Audit Committee 
- Pension Fund Committee 

 
7. The Committees which could be amended but it is recommended they continue 

unchanged at this time are: 
- Personnel Committee 
- Flood Risk and Water Management Committee 
- Standards Committee 

 
Proposed changes: 
 
8. Ordinary Committees which may be merged (while still maintaining all required 

activity and functions): 
 
- Selection and Member Services Committee & Electoral and Boundary 

Review Committee 
 

- Planning Committee & Regulation Committee 
 
9. The functions currently undertaken separately by the Selection and Member 

Services and Electoral and Boundary Review are distinct but have a reasonable 
connection to arrangements relating to Members.  A single Electoral and 
Member Arrangements Committee could be established to undertake the all the 
functions – including making appointments (or agreeing arrangements for the 
appointments) to outside bodies, reviewing and recommending changes to the 
Constitution, monitoring Member Grants, determining Election arrangements 
and responding to Boundary Reviews where these are relevant to the County 
Council.   
 

10. Selection and Member Services Committee includes a payable SRA to the 
Chair – this would continue under the proposals, pending any future Member 
Remuneration Panel review.  
 

11. The proposed changes to the Selection and Members Services functions also 
include relevant reviews to update the Terms of Reference to better reflect the 
practical management of some of the elements still referenced in the 
Constitution. 

 
12. In addition to updating the SMS functions, it is recommended that the Member 

Development Sub-Committee (a sub-committee of Selection and Member 
Services) be discontinued.  The sub-committee played an important role in 
reviewing Member Development arrangements in 2023/24 and assisted in the 

Page 8



preparation of an effective Member Induction Programme which continues to 
run following the May 2025 election.  The requirement for formal Committee 
consideration of these plans has now passed and any required working group 
activity can be monitored as necessary by the main Committee. 

 
13. The Council has legal requirements to manage Planning Application matters for 

relevant strategic issues via a non-Executive process. This is achieved either 
through formal Planning Committee meetings or via delegated Officer decisions.  
KCC already operates an effective level of delegation in accordance with 
national Planning regulations and guidance.   

 
14. The Regulation Committee has an important formal responsibility as it exercises 

functions in relation to enforcement of the control of development under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and related statutory instruments. 
However, the majority of these decision-making functions are, in practice, 
exercised via Officer delegation or through ad hoc sub-committees rather than 
the main parent Committee.  The sub-committees determine matters such as 
School Transport Appeals, Public Rights of Way issues and Village Green 
Applications. 

 
15. Given the lack of substantive business requiring regular consideration or 

decision by the main Regulation Committee, it is recommended the Planning 
and Regulation Committees functions be merged into one overarching 
Committee.  

 
16. It is recommended in the first instance that the current required sub-committee / 

panel arrangements for Regulation and Planning Committees are established 
under the new merged committee.  

 
Cabinet Committees 
 
17. The number of Cabinet Committees, their terms of reference and membership 

are all determined by the Leader of the Council.  They are not subject to formal 
Proportionality Rules.  This allows significant flexibility in how they are managed 
and the Executive can and should review them to ensure they provide an 
effective tool to assist Cabinet Members in policy development and in making 
well informed decisions. 

 
18. The Executive is proposing to consolidate all Growth, Environment and 

Transport (GET) related Cabinet Committee activity within a single GET Cabinet 
Committee – this is achieved by the Environment & Transport Cabinet 
Committee absorbing the GEDC activity and the disbanding of the GEDC 
Cabinet Committee. 

 
19. The Committee is asked to note the proposed changes to Cabinet Committee 

arrangements. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Meeting arrangement implications 
 

 
20. The proposals would result in a reduction (business need depending) of at least 

15 meetings per annum.  KCC holds, at present, an average of between 120 
and 150 meetings per year so this is a material reduction. 

 
21. A reduction in committee support requirements and expenses alongside 

operational efficiency activity, making the best use of technology and the 
proposed reduction in SRAs provides a saving of approx. £75k per annum. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
1) Recommend to County Council that the proposed changes to the Ordinary 

Committees (including relevant updates to Terms of Reference and associated 
Constitutional changes) as detailed in the report be adopted. 
 

2) Note the proposed changes to Cabinet Committees. 
 

3) Note that detailed Committee membership will be determined via the 
Proportionality Arrangements via Full Council. 
 

4) Delegate authority to the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the 
Monitoring Officer and Political Group Leaders to progress detailed Terms of 
Reference updates for the affected Committees. 

 
 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Revised Terms of Reference for Electoral and Member Arrangements 
Committee 
 
Appendix 2 – Revised Terms of Reference for Planning and Regulation Committee 
 
 
Report Author: 
Joel Cook 
Democratic Services Manager 
03000 416892 
Joel.cook@kent.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 10

mailto:Joel.cook@kent.gov.uk


Kent County Council – Selection and Member Services Committee 16 December 2025 

 

Electoral and Member Arrangements 
Committee - Terms of Reference 

Responsibilities 
This Committee is responsible for: 

• Developing the role of Members, particularly within their local community 
• Keeping the Constitution under review and making recommendations to Council on 

any changes that may be required 
• When asked by the Executive, contributing where appropriate to the development of 

the Council’s response to developments in government policy impacting local 
democracy as a whole (e.g., local government reform) 

• Keeping the Committee structure under review and making recommendations to 
Council as and when necessary, on the number, names, terms of reference, size 
and political proportionality of Committees 

• Making recommendations to Council as and when necessary, on the political 
proportionality of the Council’s representation on other authorities, joint Committees 
and partnership bodies 

• The removal of Local Authority Governors to school governing bodies 
• The removal of Local Authority nominees to the Management Committees of Pupil 

Referral Units (PRUs) 
• The removal of Local Authority governors to Academies 
• Making or arranging the following appointments and nominations:  

   i. Parent Governor Members of Council Committees 
   ii. Independent appeal Panels (school admissions and exclusions) 
   iii. Independent members of Social Services Complaints Review Panels 
   iv. The selection Panel for the Independent Person 
   v. Members of the Member Remuneration Panel 
   vi. Any other non-Council Members on Council Committees 

• Making appointments and nominations on behalf of the Council to serve on outside 
bodies (except those needing to be made by the Leader in connection with a 
delegation by them of their functions, the list of those appointments to be agreed 
between the Leader and the Committee from time to time) 

• Monitoring expenditure on Members allowances, expenses and services, and any 
Members’ Grants Schemes 

Page 11



Kent County Council – Selection and Member Services Committee 16 December 2025 

• Overseeing all Member accommodation, facilities and support services, including 
conferences, training, secretarial and other Officer support, and making 
recommendations to the relevant Cabinet Member, as appropriate 

• Agreeing arrangements for Member attendance at conferences 
• Determine requests from a lead petitioner for a review of the Council’s response to a 

petition in accordance with Petition Scheme 
• To receive reports from informal Member Working Groups where they do not report 

elsewhere 
• Dealing with all matters delegated to it by full Council relating to KCC elections and 

the Council’s Electoral Boundaries. 

Page 12



Kent County Council – Selection and Member Services Committee 16 December 2025 

 

 

Planning and Regulation Committee - 
Terms of Reference 

 

• Responsible for the determination of planning applications and related matters in 
relation to the control of development under the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 and related statutory instruments. 

• Responsible for the Council’s functions in relation to the enforcement of the control 
of development under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and related 
statutory instruments 

• The Committee may exercise any of the powers of the County Council so delegated 
as set out in the Delegation Table. 

• May permit members of the public interested in their decisions to address their 
meetings, in accordance with the principles of decision-making set out in 8.5. 

• Political Groups should only nominate Members as regular Members or as 
substitutes on the Planning and Regulation Committee (and on any Panels of the 
Committee) if they have had training in the relevant procedures. 

• When determining Planning application and related matters, the votes of each 
individual Member of the Planning Applications Committee (whether for, against, or 
in abstention) will be recorded whenever the Committee votes against the Head of 
Planning Applications Group’s recommendation for permission or refusal of a 
planning application, together with the grounds and reasons for overturning the 
recommendation. 

• The Committee will also consider: 
a) Appeals against refusal to approve premises for the solemnisation of 

marriages (or the attachment of a condition to such an approval). 
b) All Commons Registration functions under Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 

and the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008. 
c) The creation, stopping up, diversion of any footpath or bridleway or restricted 

byway or the reclassification of any public path where substantive objection 
has been raised or a Political Group or the Local Member requests. 

d) Appeals by pupils and parents against school-related decisions that are not 
considered by an external appeal Committee, including transport, education 
awards and religious education. Such appeals to be dealt with by ad hoc Sub-
Committees of Members (Panels) chaired by and including at least one 
member of the Planning and Regulation Committee. All Panel members must 
have received appropriate training before taking up their positions. 

Page 13



Kent County Council – Selection and Member Services Committee 16 December 2025 

 

e) The discharge of persons who are subject to guardianship, pursuant to 
Section 23 of the Mental Health Act 1983 on the recommendation of the 
Director Adult Social Care and Health. 
 

• The Council agreed on 20 September 2001 that functions (a)-(c) could be delegated 
to Sub-Committees. 

• The Council agreed on 13 May 2010 that function (e) could be delegated to a Sub-
Committee (the Mental Health Guardianship Sub-Committee) of at least three 
Members, one of whom should be a member of the then Regulation Committee and 
the others to be members of the Adult Social Care Cabinet Committee (who must 
not also be members of an NHS Foundation Trust). The decision to discharge must 
be agreed by at least three Members or where there are more Members on the Sub-
Committee by a majority of the Panel. 
 

Page 14



By:   Lizzy Adam - Operations & Client Relationship Manager  
 
To:   Selection and Member Services Committee – 16 December 2025 
 
Subject: 2024/25 KCC Combined Member Grants 
 
Classification: Unrestricted 
 
 
1. Combined Member Grants 
 
1.1 As part of its Terms of Reference, this Committee is responsible for monitoring 

expenditure relating to any Member Grants Schemes.  Following the financial 
closedown period and analysis of the grants processed during the 2024/25 
period in the final year of the previous electoral term, a report is now available 
and attached as an appendix. 

 
1.2 The publishing of details of grants to the voluntary, community and social 

enterprise sector is mandatory under the publication scheme (s19 FOIA) and 
Local Government Transparency Code 2015.  Information should be published 
at least annually; the only exception to this is during a pre-election period, when 
the information is removed from KCC’s website. 

 
1.3 Due to resourcing pressures, the report provides a basic year-end overview of 

the grants processed during 2024/25. If any Member wishes to request further 
details of any of the grants contained within the report, please email 
Members.Desk@kent.gov.uk ahead of the meeting.  

 
1.4 A new Member Grant system is currently being piloted which has the ability to 

provide Members with real time grant spend using Microsoft Power BI. Subject 
to the successful conclusion of the pilot, it is anticipated that the new system will 
go live for the 2026/27 financial year.  

 
1.5 Many grants were awarded in the last financial year supporting a variety of 

organisations and thanks are given to Ollie Unthank, Lucy Bigwood, Jenny 
Leagas, Dilpreet Sall, Georgia Crowhurst, Kieran Hurwood and Janet Kent for 
their work in processing the 2024/25 grants in line with guidelines.   

 
Recommendation: 
 
The Committee is requested to note the grant recipient list for the Combined Member Grants 
2024/25. 

 
Lizzy Adam 
Operations & Client Relationship Manager 
lizzy.adam@kent.gov.uk 
03000 412775 
 
Appendix: 

List of Combined Member Grants 2024/25 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Members.Desk@kent.gov.uk
mailto:lizzy.adam@kent.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Member Division District Applicant Project Amount

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Shedkwick CIC Beaver Community Garden 750.00£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Repton Community Trust The People's Pantry 875.98£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford South Ashford FC U16s Football Team Kit 500.00£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Ashford Malayalee Association (AMA) Onam (Aravam 2024) 999.00£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Friends of Bybrook Nature Reserve Purchase of Equipment for Bird Hide 413.86£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Ashford Photographic Society Laptop purchase for group use 686.00£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Ashford Volunteer Centre Repairs to Berwick House 855.10£        

Paul Bartlett Ashford Central Ashford Central Ashford Forum Initiate a Communications Strategy 250.06£        

Steve Campkin Ashford East Ashford Shedkwick Torrington Road Generator 679.99£        

Steve Campkin Ashford East Ashford South Willesborough & Newtown Community Council (SWANCC) SWAN Salute to the 1940s 3,744.00£     

Steve Campkin Ashford East Ashford South Willesborough & Newtown Community Council (SWANCC) Playpark Improvements in Newton 9,996.00£     

Clair Bell Ashford Rural East Ashford Chilham Parish Council Improving the Outlook & Parking in Chilham Square 1,262.43£     

Clair Bell Ashford Rural East Ashford Stour Music Festival Company Equipment Stour Music 2024 500.00£        

Clair Bell Ashford Rural East Ashford Wye Village Hall and Recreation Field Charity Refurbishment of Car Park 500.00£        

Clair Bell Ashford Rural East Ashford Friends of St Mary's Church Chilham Tower Clock Restoration 600.00£        

Clair Bell Ashford Rural East Ashford Aldington Tennis Club Lighting upgrades for courtyard 500.00£        

Clair Bell Ashford Rural East Ashford Molash Village Hall Smoke Alarms for village hall 500.00£        

David Robey Ashford Rural South Ashford Woodchurch Carnival Carnival 24 900.00£        

David Robey Ashford Rural South Ashford Woodchurch Village Shed Woodchurch Village Shed 500.00£        

David Robey Ashford Rural South Ashford Hamstreet Victory Hall Fund New Boiler 500.00£        

Charlie Simkins Ashford Rural West Ashford Hothfield History Society Website Update and Improvement 600.00£        

Charlie Simkins Ashford Rural West Ashford Smarden Big Bang Smarden Bonfire Celebrations 2024 480.00£        

Charlie Simkins Ashford Rural West Ashford Wyvern School Playground Equipment 3,000.00£     

Charlie Simkins Ashford Rural West Ashford St Margaret's Bethersden Bell & Frame Restoration Fund Bell and Frame Restoration Fund 500.00£        

Dirk Ross Ashford South Ashford

Mike Hill, OBE Tenterden Ashford Tenterden Folk Festival Tenterden Folk Festival 2024 500.00£        

Mike Hill, OBE Tenterden Ashford Tenterden & District Museum Association Welcome Desk Electronic Point of Sale 400.00£        

Mike Hill, OBE Tenterden Ashford Smallhythe Parochial Church Council Flower Festival 250.00£        

Mike Hill, OBE Tenterden Ashford Rolvenden Primary School Classroom Equipment 500.00£        

Mike Hill, OBE Tenterden Ashford Sustainable Tenterden Green Fun Day 500.00£        

Mike Hill, OBE Tenterden Ashford Appledore Parish Council Electrical Vehicle (EV) Charging 1,000.00£     

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Canterbury and District Early Years Project Replacement of flooring in the kitchen and toilets 1,008.00£     

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Northgate Ward Development Group Northgate Workshop Project 2,500.00£     

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Prince of Wales Youth Club Summer-4-Fun project 1,000.00£     

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Pride Canterbury CIC Pride Canterbury 2024 (Jointly funded with Mike Sole and Rob Thomas) 300.00£        

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Canterbury Theatre and Festival Trust Beautiful Noise - A Community Music Celebration (Jointly funded with Mel Dawkins) 500.00£        

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury St Steven's Resident's Association The Great Winter Get Together 300.00£        

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Bemix Belong Exhibition Hall Hire 500.00£        

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury All Saints Church Canterbury Christmas Day Lunch & Entertainment 500.00£        

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury St Dunstan's Residents' Association Spring Community Celebration 300.00£        

Alister Brady Canterbury City North Canterbury Dads Unlimited Discovery Programme 1,035.06£     

Mel Dawkins Canterbury City South Canterbury KCC - Plan Tree Plan Tree, Fruit Trees for Canterbury Academy School 754.90£        

Mel Dawkins Canterbury City South Canterbury Canterbury Chamber Choir Choral Performance equipment 500.00£        

Mel Dawkins Canterbury City South Canterbury Canterbury Theatre and Festival Trust Beautiful Noise - A Community Music Celebration (Jointly funded with Alister Brady) 500.00£        

Mel Dawkins Canterbury City South Canterbury Canterbury Baptist Church (CBC) The Hub Café - Community Fridge 3,600.00£     

Mel Dawkins Canterbury City South Canterbury Spring Lane Veterans Hub Wednesday Club 450.00£        
Mel Dawkins Canterbury City South Canterbury Kent Highways Longport, Canterbury. Request to change approx. 54m of red cycle track to cream-coloured buff high friction surfacing for aesthetic reasons relating to adjacent World Heritage Site. 832.22£        

Robert Thomas Canterbury North Canterbury Chartham Hatch Village Hall Safety Equipment and Hall Maintenance  1,135.94£     

Robert Thomas Canterbury North Canterbury Pride Canterbury CIC Pride Canterbury 2024 (Jointly funded with Alister Brady and Mike Sole) 600.00£        

Robert Thomas Canterbury North Canterbury Rough Common Village Hall Charity New Pavilion Roof 8,657.47£     

Robert Thomas Canterbury North Canterbury Upper Harbledown Association Bench and base for Village Green 500.00£        

Robert Thomas Canterbury North Canterbury Canterbury Table Tennis Club Taster days and equipment 500.00£        

Robert Thomas Canterbury North Canterbury East Kent Model Railway Society Club room defibrillator project 1,250.00£     

Mike Sole Canterbury South Canterbury Nailbourne Scout Group Archery Equipment 520.00£        

Mike Sole Canterbury South Canterbury Ickham and Well Parish Council Repairs to Ickham Finger Post 400.00£        

Mike Sole Canterbury South Canterbury Pride Canterbury CIC Pride Canterbury 2024 (Jointly funded with Alister Brady and Rob Thomas) 300.00£        

Mike Sole Canterbury South Canterbury Bishopsbourne Parish Council Wooden adventure trail 4,199.00£     

Mike Sole Canterbury South Canterbury Bridge Parish Council Projector for group use 832.50£        

Mike Sole Canterbury South Canterbury Kent Highways Funding contribution for civil works to implement Womenswold Parish Council’s 30mph speed reduction. 1,000.00£     

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury East Kent Mencap Herne Bay Hub Garden 600.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Happy Here CIC Service provision in inclement weather 500.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay Jazz Festival CIC Herne Bay Jazz Festival 2024 400.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay Festival Folk Festival performances 2,000.00£     

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Age UK Herne Bay & Whitstable Equipment to facilitate delivery of COGs Memory Clubs 300.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Bayguide CIC Herne Bay Cartoon Festival 2024 500.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Riverside Church Whitstable Youth Hub - Kitchen area 500.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay Pride Herne Bay Pride 2024 500.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay Boccia Club Improvement of club facilities 500.00£        

All Members - 2024-25 Grant Spend

P
age 17



Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay Salvation Army Peaced Together - purchase of sewing machines 500.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Beach Creative CIC Health and Safety/Access project 4,950.00£     

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Reculver & Beltinge Village Hall Raising the Roof' - Curtains 4,950.00£     

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay in Bloom Water Supply at Neptune Planting Area - Central Parade Herne Bay 450.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Herne Bay Sea Cadets Remedial works to Herne Bay Sea Cadets Headquarters (Jointly funded with Neil Baker) 500.00£        

Dan Watkins Herne Bay East Canterbury Canterbury Connected CIC Development of Time and Tides App 5,490.00£     

Alan Marsh Herne Village & Sturry Canterbury Herne and Broomfield Parish Council Herne Centre Electrical Survey Works 764.00£        

Alan Marsh Herne Village & Sturry Canterbury Deal Memorial Bandstand Trust Concert on Walmer Green 400.00£        

Alan Marsh Herne Village & Sturry Canterbury Herne C.E. Junior School Pantomime Visit 1,435.00£     

Alan Marsh Herne Village & Sturry Canterbury Hersden Neighbourhood Centre Association Christmas Panto 2024 450.00£        

Alan Marsh Herne Village & Sturry Canterbury Friends of Herne Mill Upgrade of equipment 1,000.00£     

Neil Baker Whitstable East & Herne Bay West Canterbury Herne Bay Sea Cadets Remedial works to Herne Bay Sea Cadets Headquarters (Jointly funded with Dan Watkins) 500.00£        

Neil Baker Whitstable East & Herne Bay West Canterbury Talk of Tankerton Replacement planters to help bio diversity and attracting wildlife 5,435.00£     

Neil Baker Whitstable East & Herne Bay West Canterbury Kent Highways Traffic Regulation Order - Herne Bay Carnival 25.00£          

Mark Dance Whitstable West Canterbury Horsebridge Arts & Community Centre Telephone Box Art Gallery 1,450.00£     

Mark Dance Whitstable West Canterbury Royal British Legion Whitstable Social Club Ltd Refurbishment and replacement of items not covered by insurance 13,560.00£   

Mark Dance Whitstable West Canterbury Kent Highways Cost of design & installation of tactile paving in Sea Street, Whitstable 995.48£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Emerge Advocacy Emerge Darent Valley Project 800.00£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Dartford Science & Technology College Community Day 2024 (Jointly funded with Kelly Grehan) 500.00£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Healthy Living Centre Dartford Volunteers' Week Afternoon Tea (Jointly funded with Avtar Sandhu) 250.00£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Stone Parish Council Seniors Christmas Lunch 870.00£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Dartford Science & Technology College Senior Citizens Afternoon Tea (Jointly funded with Kelly Grehan) 978.60£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Hope on Prescription CIC Hope on Prescription Festival 1,000.00£     

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Stone Parish Council Refurbishment of Stone Pavillion 3,329.54£     

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Bexley, Greenwich and Dartford HE CIC Team Games HE Monthly Meet Up 804.00£        

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Stone (Dartford) Scout Group Entrance Door Replacement 2,500.00£     

Penny Cole Dartford East Dartford Healthy Living Centre Dartford Tree Bingo Club Christmas Celebration 250.00£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford All Directions Summer Boat Trips 550.00£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford Dartford Science & Technology College Community Day 2024 (Jointly funded with Penny Cole) 500.00£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford River Mill Primary School PTA Community Events 766.97£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford Mummy's Linkup Reachout Support 400.00£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford New Life Christian Community/Temple Hill Baptist Church NLCC Food Hub 500.00£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford Homestart NWK Christmas Meal Annual Thank You for Volunteers 1,000.00£     

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford Leigh Academy Dartford Children’s play equipment 418.91£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford All Directions Christmas party for volunteers 586.00£        

Kelly Grehan Dartford North East Dartford Dartford Science & Technology College Senior Citizens Afternoon Tea (Jointly funded with Penny Cole) 489.30£        

Jeremy Kite Dartford Rural Dartford Sutton at Hone & Hawley Parish Council Public Defibrillator 1,000.00£     

Jeremy Kite Dartford Rural Dartford Kent Highways Darenth Park Avenue - Replacement of Speed Cushions 10,975.00£   

Jan Ozog Dartford West Dartford Dartford Arts Centre t/as The Mick Jagger Centre International Arts Festival 20,000.00£   

Peter Harman Swanscombe and Greenhithe Dartford Walk Tall Podcasting equipment to give young people the opportunity to learn digital and communication skills 3,766.00£     

Peter Harman Swanscombe and Greenhithe Dartford Swanscombe & Greenhithe Town Council Open Air Cinema Events 3,350.00£     

Peter Harman Swanscombe and Greenhithe Dartford St Mary's Church, Greenhithe AED Defibrillator & Cycle Rack 1,000.00£     

Peter Harman Swanscombe and Greenhithe Dartford MCK - Mary's Child Kent Summer ‘Food and Fun’ project 500.00£        

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Wilmington Parish Council Noticeboard Replacement/Refurbishment 9,000.00£     

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Wilmington Active Retirement Group Wellbeing Classes 350.00£        

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Age UK Kent Rivers Steady, Strong & Able classes 250.00£        

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Healthy Living Centre Dartford Volunteers' Week Afternoon Tea (Jointly funded with Penny Cole) 250.00£        

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Joydens Wood Gardening Club Flower Arranging Workshop 375.00£        

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Wilmington Community Church The Pantry 1,982.38£     

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Kent Highways 11 Salt Bins & Refills in Wilmington 5,593.61£     

Avtar Sandhu Wilmington Dartford Kent Highways Cleansing & CCTV Surveys of High Rd and Leyton Cross Rd, Wilmington 3,004.01£     

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover Dover District Council Youth Conference Roadshow 2024 (Jointly funded with Oliver Richardson, Nigel Collor and Sue Chandler) 800.00£        

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Memorial Bandstand Royal Marines Band Concert on Walmer Green 600.00£        

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover Walmer Town Council Children's Festival 600.00£        

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover Cinque Ports Football Club Seasonal pitch maintenance and training (Jointly funded with Derek Murphy) 1,500.00£     

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Town Rangers Football Club Replacement and storage of goals (Jointly funded with Derek Murphy) 1,200.00£     

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover Emmaus Dover New All Weather Space for Community Events (Jointly funded with Steve Manion, David Beaney, Nigel Collor and Derek Murphy) 1,000.00£     

Trevor Bond Deal & Walmer Dover The Parish of Upper Deal and Great Mongeham Community Friendship Lunch 2,000.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Emmaus Dover Ltd 1:1 Counselling for Companions 1,000.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Pride Deal Pride 2024 1,800.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Community Carnival Association Deal Carnival Week 1,800.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Music and Arts Limited Deal Festival 2024 – French Connections 1,000.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Victoria & Barns Close Cricket Club Funding & Support of Girls’ Cricket 1,500.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Cinque Ports Football Club Seasonal pitch maintenance and training (Jointly funded with Trevor Bond) 1,500.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Deal Town Rangers Football Club Replacement and storage of goals (Jointly funded with Trevor Bond) 1,500.00£     

Derek Murphy Deal & Walmer Dover Emmaus Dover Ltd New All Weather Space for Community Events (Jointly funded with Steve Manion, David Beaney, Nigel Collor and Trevor Bond) 1,056.00£     

Steve Manion Dover North Dover Samphire Dover Multi-Cultural Festival 2024 (Jointly funded by Nigel Collor, Oliver Richardson and David Beaney) 300.00£        

Steve Manion Dover North Dover Dover & District Beekeepers Association Project to prevent the establishment of the Asian Hornet in Kent 250.00£        

Steve Manion Dover North Dover Aylesham & Rural Community Heart Provision of a new defibrillator 500.00£        

Steve Manion Dover North Dover Martha Trust Music on the Farm – Community Festival 400.00£        

Steve Manion Dover North Dover The Parish of Upper Deal and Great Mongeham Community creative workshop 1,000.00£     

P
age 18



Steve Manion Dover North Dover Aylesham Carnival Association Summer fete and carnival 1,000.00£     

Steve Manion Dover North Dover Nonington Parish Council Speed Awareness Equipment 1,732.95£     

Steve Manion Dover North Dover Emmaus Dover Ltd New All Weather Space for Community Events (Jointly funded with David Beaney, Nigel Collor, Trevor Bond and Derek Murphy) 741.69£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Dover District Council Youth Conference Roadshow 2024 (Jointly funded with Oliver Richardson, Trevor Bond and Sue Chandler) 500.00£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Samphire Dover Multi-Cultural Festival 2024 (Jointly funded with Steve Manion, Oliver Richardson and David Beaney) 200.00£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Dover Big Local CIC Dover Urban Fete 1,000.00£     

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Dover Pride 2024 Dover Pride 2024 (Jointly funded with Oliver Richardson) 250.00£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover East Kent Soccer School and Dover Schools Football Association Football Equipment (Jointly funded with Sue Chandler and Oliver Richardson) 400.00£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Royal British Legion Dover White Cliffs Service to remember those involved in the Channel Dash in WW2 300.00£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover The Academy Dover CIC Fightin' Fit ABC Dover 600.00£        

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Dover Bowling Club Bowling Green Edge Reinforcement and Maintenance 2025 (Jointly funded with Oliver Richardson) 1,700.00£     

Nigel Collor Dover Town Dover Emmaus Dover Ltd New All Weather Space for Community Events (Jointly funded with Steve Manion, David Beaney, Trevor Bond and Derek Murphy) 2,900.00£     

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Dover Model Boat Club Secure garage door 500.00£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Samphire Dover Multi-Cultural Festival 2024 (Jointly funded by Nigel Collor, Steve Manion and David Beaney) 200.00£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Dover District Council Youth Conference Roadshow 2024 (Jointly funded by Trevor Bond, Nigel Collor and Sue Chandler) 1,400.00£     

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Dover Big Local CIC Dover Urban Fete 1,000.00£     

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Dover Pride Dover Pride 2024 (Jointly funded with Nigel Collor) 500.00£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Deal Breastfeeding Support Group Pump Hire Scheme Expansion 851.00£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover East Kent Soccer School and Dover Schools Football Association Football Equipment (Jointly funded with Sue Chandler and Nigel Collor) 750.00£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Dover Bowling Club Bowling green edge reinforcement and maintenance 2025 (Jointly funded with Nigel Collor) 700.00£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Royal Marines Association Club Deal Purchase of plastic white folding tables 395.88£        

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Dover Patrol Memorial Trust Repairs to Granville Road, St. Margaret’s Bay 2,000.00£     

Oliver Richardson Dover Town Dover Deal Community Carnival Association Impact study and website 2,500.00£     

David Beaney Dover West Dover Samphire Dover Multi-Cultural Festival 2024 (Jointly funded with Steve Manion, Oliver Richardson and Nigel Collor) 200.00£        

David Beaney Dover West Dover Lydden Parish Council New Benches for the Community 1,493.96£     

David Beaney Dover West Dover Eythorne Parish Council Purchase and installation of allotment perimeter fencing 2,000.00£     

David Beaney Dover West Dover Shepherdswell Spartans Football Club Nets, Benches and Gazebo 1,000.00£     

David Beaney Dover West Dover Caple-le-Ferne Parish Council Ball Rebound Fencing 1,509.00£     

David Beaney Dover West Dover Hougham Without Parish Council Football Goals 1,200.00£     

David Beaney Dover West Dover Emmaus Dover New All Weather Space for Community Events (Jointly funded with Steve Manion, Trevor Bond, Nigel Collor and Derek Murphy) 934.12£        

David Beaney Dover West Dover River Parish Council Planter Project 1,298.00£     

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Dover District Council Youth Conference Roadshow 2024 (Jointly funded with Oliver Richardson, Nigel Collor and Trevor Bond) 500.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Sandwich Town Council D-Day 80 Sandwich Event 300.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover The White Mill Folk Museum Trust Ltd Crane hire for reinstatement of sweeps 380.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Goodnestone Music Charitable Trust Goodnestone Festival 500.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Preston & Elmstone Parish Council Preston Summerfest 500.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Wingham Football Club Purchase of new AED Pads and Battery Bundle 342.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover 1st Ash Next Sandwich Rangers Replacing old Bell Tent for use on camp 414.99£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover St. Clement’s Sandwich Parochial Church Council St. Clement’s Churchyard Rediscovered 799.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover East Kent Soccer School and Dover Schools Football Association Football Equipment (Jointly funded with Nigel Collor and Oliver Richardson) 500.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Woodnesborough Parochial Church Council Defibrillator 676.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Sandwich and District Royal British Legion Repair of Commemorative Plaque 650.00£        

Sue Chandler Sandwich Dover Eastry Young People’s Club (EYPC) Provision of new TV/sound bar and indoor football goals 1,300.00£     

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe Strange Cargo Arts Company Charivari Day 2024 (Jointly funded with Dylan Jeffrey) 1,000.00£     

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe Canterbury Archaeological Trust East Wear Bay - A Community Archaeology and Engagement Project 400.00£        

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe Friends of Saltwood School (FOSS) Saltwood CofE Primary School Library Renovations 4,441.30£     

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe Strange Cargo Arts Company Performers and crafting workshops for Charivari Day 2024 5,000.00£     

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe John Armitage Memorial Trust Hythe community activities as part of JAM on the Marsh 2025 1,500.00£     

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe Shapeshifter Productions The Smiling Sessions at Sunflower House 1,000.00£     

Rory Love, OBE Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East Folkestone & Hythe Strange Cargo Arts Company Artist fees for community workshops (Jointly funded with Dylan Jeffrey) 5,000.00£     

Susan Carey Elham Valley Folkestone & Hythe Stelling Minnis PTA Replacement of playground equipment 500.00£        

Susan Carey Elham Valley Folkestone & Hythe Hawkinge Cricket Club Ground Equipment Replacement 1,000.00£     

Susan Carey Elham Valley Folkestone & Hythe Hawkinge Football Club Replacement Footballs 1,000.00£     

Susan Carey Elham Valley Folkestone & Hythe Elham Parish Council Community Water Bowser 300.00£        

Susan Carey Elham Valley Folkestone & Hythe Kent Downs National Landscapes Heritage Village Signing 1,746.55£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Folkestone Town Council Folkestone Play Parks 1,500.00£     
Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Kent Coast Volunteering Super befrienders pilot project (Jointly funded with Dylan Jeffrey and Jenni Hawkins) 500.00£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Folkstone Performing Arts Company The Folkestone Performing Arts Centre’s Community Theatre Drop-In Drama Sessions & Playwrighting Sessions 125.00£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Martello PTFA Soft furnishings for the book club 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Friends of St Mary's Primary School (PTFA) Books for School Library 1,001.29£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Folkestone Baptist Church Community Lunches Boiler Repair 500.00£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Canterbury Archaeological Trust East Wear Bay - A Community Archaeology and Engagement Project 400.00£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Castle Hill Community Primary School PTFA Library Funding in Schools 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Martello PTFA Books for School reading corner 1,025.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Folkestone Town Council Downs Road Play Park 852.00£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Mundella Primary School Books for School Library 911.42£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe St Peters Primary School Reading Books 997.61£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Sunflower House Street cleaning equipment 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Canterbury Archaeological Trust Archaeological School Sessions 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Folkestone Community Fridge Folkestone Community Fridge and Café 2,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Wild With Wheels Wheeled Warren Adventure Walks 2,009.00£     

P
age 19



Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe The Harbour Ward Community  Garden Maintenance of Community Garden 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe John Bowley and Sherwood Alms Houses Sherwood Trust Homes Water Catchment Project 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Tyson Road Residents Association Youth Group Funding 1,000.00£     

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Stella Maris School Books and Pantomime Trip (Jointly funded with Dylan Jeffrey) 335.00£        

Jackie Meade Folkestone East Folkestone & Hythe Care Anchor Kent CIC Care Anchor Care Days 936.00£        

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe 21 Together Pilot - Family Day to New Romney Train 1,570.00£     
Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Kent Coast Volunteering Super befrienders pilot project (Jointly funded with Jenni Hawkins and Jackie Meade) 500.00£        

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Folkstone Performing Arts Company The Folkestone Performing Arts Centre’s Community Theatre Drop-In Drama Sessions & Playwrighting Sessions 125.00£        

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Strange Cargo Arts Company Charivari Day 2024 (Jointly funded with Rory Love) 1,200.00£     

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Stella Maris School Coach Trip 990.00£        

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Canterbury Archaeological Trust East Wear Bay - A Community Archaeology and Engagement Project 400.00£        

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe The Bayle Residents Association Bayle in Bloom, Annual Members Garden Party & Folkestone Halloween Event 3,250.00£     

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Christ Church CEP Academy Playground Equipment 500.00£        

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Stella Maris School Books and Pantomime Trip (Jointly funded with Jackie Meade) 2,686.56£     

Dylan Jeffrey Folkestone West Folkestone & Hythe Strange Cargo Arts Company Artist fees for community workshops  (Jointly funded with Rory Love) 2,500.00£     

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Kent Coast Volunteering Super befrienders pilot project  (Jointly funded with Dylan Jeffrey and Jackie Meade) 500.00£        

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Dymchurch Day of Syn Society Day of Syn 2024 Event 1,000.00£     

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Folkstone Performing Arts Company Theatre Development Project 816.00£        

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Hythe Green Preservation Society Bluebell Seeding 1,000.00£     

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Dymchurch Community Garden Community Garden 500.00£        

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Friends of Saltwood School (FOSS) Mobile Football Goals 1,200.00£     

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Hythe Triangle Community Garden Repairs to Exterior of Grade II Listed Walls of "The Hythe Triangle" 1,368.00£     

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Dymchurch Parish Council Memorial Fund 500.00£        

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe Lympne Parish Council Football Posts/Nets 1,200.00£     

Jenni Hawkins Hythe West Folkestone & Hythe The John Armitage Memorial Trust Hythe Community Activities as part of JAM on the Marsh 2025 1,000.00£     

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe New Romney Country Fayre Committee Country Fayre 2024 500.00£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe Lydd Club Day Lydd Club Day 500.00£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe Brenzett Village Hall Works to Hall 500.00£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe Friends of Brookland CE Primary School Brooklandbury Cups for festival 250.00£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe Romney Marsh Community Archaeology Group (RoMCAG) Archaeology equipment for volunteers 424.69£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe Caring Altogether on Romney Marsh Meeting Point Activity Grant 650.00£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe Dymchurch Parish Council Memorial Fund 110.64£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe The John Armitage Memorial Trust Romney Marsh Community Activities as part of JAM on the Marsh 2025 500.00£        

Tony Hills Romney Marsh Folkestone & Hythe KCC Highways Installation of 2x Horse Warning signs 865.73£        

Jordan Meade Gravesend East Gravesham Gravesham Sanctuary Provision of Day Centre Premises  £    1,750.00 

Jordan Meade Gravesend East Gravesham Gravesend Regatta Society Making Waves Charity Regatta 2024  £    1,000.00 

Jordan Meade Gravesend East Gravesham G-Safe Improvements to Communications  £    3,000.00 

Jordan Meade Gravesend East Gravesham Chatham Naval Officers Association Provision of Resource for Sea Cadet Training (Jointly funded with Alan Ridgers)  £    1,500.00 

Jordan Meade Gravesend East Gravesham Gravesham Network Development CIC Gifted Young Generation Showcase (Jointly funded with Conrad Broadley)  £       440.82 

Alan Ridgers Gravesend East Gravesham Gravesend Historical Society The Roman Springhead and Ebbsfleet Valley Educational Project  £    2,000.00 

Alan Ridgers Gravesend East Gravesham Gravesend Sea Cadets Classroom/Office Upgrade  £    1,000.00 

Alan Ridgers Gravesend East Gravesham Kent Archaeological Society KAS Archaeology & History Survey Projects  £       317.31 

Alan Ridgers Gravesend East Gravesham Chatham Naval Officers Association Provision of Resource for Sea Cadet Training (Jointly funded with Jordan Meade)  £    1,000.00 

Bryan Sweetland Gravesham Rural Gravesham The Meopham Windmill Trust Repair & Improve Vehicular & Pedestrian Access to the Mill and Parking Provision  £    1,000.00 

Bryan Sweetland Gravesham Rural Gravesham We Are Beams The Big Christmas Party  £    1,000.00 

Bryan Sweetland Gravesham Rural Gravesham The Meopham Windmill Trust Smart Molen Installation  £       305.00 

Bryan Sweetland Gravesham Rural Gravesham Kent Highways Salt Bins in Vigo  £    1,634.00 

Bryan Sweetland Gravesham Rural Gravesham Kent Highways Timber Bollards in Wrotham Road  £    3,000.00 

Conrad Broadley Northfleet & Gravesend West Gravesham Owl Preschool Replacement of the outer perimeter fencing and shed  £    4,000.00 

Conrad Broadley Northfleet & Gravesend West Gravesham G-Town Talents Suicide Awareness Media Project  £    3,000.00 

Conrad Broadley Northfleet & Gravesend West Gravesham Gravesham Tennis Club New Energy Saving LED Floodlights for Playing Tennis  £    5,000.00 

Conrad Broadley Northfleet & Gravesend West Gravesham Gravesham Network Development CIC Gifted Young Generation Showcase (Jointly funded with Jordan Meade)  £    4,559.18 

Dr Lauren Sullivan Northfleet & Gravesend West Gravesham Gravesham Borough Council Northfleet Gym Equipment  £    5,000.00 

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone 2nd Allington Guides Marquee for Camp 400.00£        

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Wishing Hearts Charity The Together Tea Party 1,000.00£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Blackthorn Trust Café Connect project 1,685.50£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Blackthorn Trust Disabled Toilet Refurbishment 3,864.46£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Churches Winter Shelters (MCWS)  2024/25 Winter Shelter Project (Jointly funded with Paul Cooper and Shellina Prendergast) 2,000.00£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone St Peter & St Pauls Church Aylesford Dementia Café (Jointly funded with Andrew Kennedy) 150.00£        

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Mid Kent Mind Purchase of Wellbeing Boxes 1,000.00£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Warriors Basketball Club Wall mounted Electronic Scoreboard (Jointly funded with Chris Passmore) 113.00£        

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Kent Highways Salt Bin in Allington Ward, Maidstone 784.84£        
Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Kent Highways 3 Salt Bins on the Queens Avenue junction with Clement Court, Woodleas junction with Beverley Road, Gatland Lane junction with Fant Lane outside 1A 1,525.53£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Kent Highways Consultation and installation of double yellow lines on Castle Road, Allington 3,250.00£     

Tom Cannon Maidstone Central Maidstone Kent Highways Salt Bin on Douglas Road/Charles Street 508.51£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Amateur Operatic Society Beauty and the Beast production - Costumes 500.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Allington Millennium Green Trust Purchase of cordless electric grass mower and accessories 600.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Royal Naval Association (Area 2 Kent) Annual Sea Service 600.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Street Pastors Equipment for rough sleepers 284.79£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone St Margaret’s Church, Barming Football Kick Academy Barming 350.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Barming Youth Football Club Barming Buds - sports equipment 932.63£        

P
age 20



Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Homeless Care Maidstone Day Centre Christmas Dinner 600.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Allington Millennium Green Trust Purchase of cordless electric brush cutter and accessories 500.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Amateur Operatic Society Beauty and the Beast production - costumes 500.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Castle Colts Football Club Football Hub – Orchard Ground 295.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Climate Action Network Team Repair at Maidstone Repair Cafe 500.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Medway Valley Countryside Conservation Area at Clare Park 1,093.43£     

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Blackthorn Trust Café Connect project 350.00£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Valley Park School Arts and craft equipment for station project 398.71£        

Chris Passmore Maidstone Central Maidstone Maidstone Warriors Basketball Club Wall mounted Electronic Scoreboard (Jointly funded with Tom Cannon) 205.00£        

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Maidstone Blue Bus Charity Medical Consumables and Oxygen Equipment 1,000.00£     

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Trinity Pre-School Playgroup Pre-School Garden Improvements 1,000.00£     

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Maidstone Street Pastors Equipment for rough sleepers 500.00£        

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Maidstone Amateur Operatic Society Beauty and the Beast production – BSL Interpreter 400.00£        

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Maidstone Indian CIC Arts and craft for Young People Workshops 500.00£        

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Maidstone Borough Council Parks and Open Spaces Pocket Park Signage and Bio-diversity Improvements 600.00£        

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Space 2 Be Me Universe Club for Young Adults with Additional Needs 897.17£        

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Kent Highways Footway works in St Luke’s Avenue, Maidstone 2,000.00£     

Ian Chittenden Maidstone North East Maidstone Kent Highways Salt Bin in Bonnington Road 508.51£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Broomfield and Kingswood Parish Council Silent Tommy Repair and Planter Signs 500.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Lenham Meadow Trust Equipment Acquisition 489.13£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Headcorn PTFA 150th birthday Hobbit Hut Outdoor Library 1,000.00£     

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone The Station At Hollingbourne Community Interest Company Ltd Community café – further setting up 648.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Dandelion Time Site Improvement Project (Jointly funded with Sir Paul Carter) 1,000.00£     

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone North Downs Society North Downs Historic Signposts 2,000.00£     

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Grafty Green Village Hall Electrical Rewire & Internal redecoration & making good after works 1,000.00£     

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Hollingbourne Parish Council Village Road Safety - SID (Speed Indicator Device) 500.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Leeds and Kingswood Scout Group Camping Equipment 570.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Ulcombe Parish Council Defibrillator - Wents 500.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Maidstone Churches Winter Shelters (MCWS) 2024/25 Winter Shelter Project (Jointly funded with Tom Cannon and Paul Cooper) 500.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Headcorn Parish Council PA System for Remembrance Sunday Parade and future events 800.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Tunstall and Wormshill Scout Group Camp/Community Events 2024 (Jointly funded with Rich Lehmann) 300.00£        

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Harrietsham Church of England Primary School Clearance and Seeding of new field area 1,500.00£     

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Kent Highways  Installation of white village gateway on A20 for Harrietsham 1,000.00£     

Shellina Prendergast Maidstone Rural East Maidstone Kent Highways Installation of HGV directional signage on The Street, Detling 89.00£          

Sir Paul Carter, CBE Maidstone Rural North Maidstone Young Lives Foundation Maidstone Youth Mentoring Service 2,500.00£     

Sir Paul Carter, CBE Maidstone Rural North Maidstone Bearsted Parish Council Summer Playscheme 2024 1,000.00£     

Sir Paul Carter, CBE Maidstone Rural North Maidstone Dandelion Time Site Improvement Project (Jointly funded with Shellina Prendergast) 2,050.63£     

Sir Paul Carter, CBE Maidstone Rural North Maidstone Boxley Parish Council Biodiversity improvements for Beechen Hall and Walderslade Woodlands 1,000.00£     

Sir Paul Carter, CBE Maidstone Rural North Maidstone Bredhurst Parish Council Notice Board, Hurstwood Road, Bredhurst 1,231.97£     

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone  Sutton Valence & District Branch RBL Coach Outing to Eastbourne Air Show 500.00£        

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Marden Parish Council Marden Summer Play Scheme 365.00£        

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Chart Sutton Parish Council EV parking Upgrades 1,000.00£     

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Marden Parish Council Junior Football Goals 829.17£        

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Boughton Monchelsea Parish Council Signage for public open spaces 750.00£        

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Chart Sutton Parish Council Speedwatch Equipment 700.00£        

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Marden Parish Council Solar Panels - Public Conveniences 1,000.00£     

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Sutton Valence Parish Council Repairs to Tennis Hut 1,443.83£     

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Boughton Monchelsea Parish Council Improvements to village hall car park gates 500.00£        

Lottie Parfitt Maidstone Rural South Maidstone Staplehurst Parish Council Improvement to Disabled toilet in Staplehurst Youth Club 1,729.00£     

Simon Webb Maidstone Rural West Maidstone Coxheath Primary School School Garden Renovation 300.00£        

Simon Webb Maidstone Rural West Maidstone Coxheath Pre-School Refresh of broken and worn toys 300.00£        

Simon Webb Maidstone Rural West Maidstone Yalding and Laddingford Football Club Purchase of a Mobile Defibrillator 700.00£        

Simon Webb Maidstone Rural West Maidstone Coxheath Scout Group Camping kit and storage 942.00£        

Simon Webb Maidstone Rural West Maidstone Kent Highways Maidstone Road, Nettlestead - Zebra Crossing Line Painting 521.00£        

Simon Webb Maidstone Rural West Maidstone Kent Highways Maidstone Road, Nettlestead - Zebra Crossing Beacon Upgrade 2,500.00£     

Paul Cooper Maidstone South Maidstone Harmony Variety Group Ltd - T/A Harmony Maidstone Youth Board and Co-Production of Services 3,200.00£     

Paul Cooper Maidstone South Maidstone Maidstone Amateur Operatic Society Beauty and the Beast production – Tickets for the Elderly 490.00£        

Paul Cooper Maidstone South Maidstone Maidstone Churches Winter Shelters (MCWS) 2024/25 Winter Shelter Project (Jointly funded with Tom Cannon and Shellina Prendergast) 2,000.00£     

Paul Cooper Maidstone South Maidstone Loose Primary School PTA Sensory Garden and Woodland Walk 5,000.00£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Fusion Maidstone Healthy Living Centre Fusion Youth Club 2,000.00£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Leeds Parish Council Church Lighting 2,000.00£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Downswood Community Association Christmas Lights for Residents 1,586.27£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Downswood Parish Council Christmas Lighting 750.00£        

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Fusion Maidstone Healthy Living Centre Fusion Christmas event 3,000.00£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Imago Community- Kent Young Carers Young Carers Christmas Event at Kent Life 674.00£        

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Fusion Maidstone Healthy Living Centre Community Notice Board 1,150.00£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone The Vine Schools Mentoring 1,212.14£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Imago Community- Kent Young Carers Young Carers Respite Activities 1,434.70£     

Gary Cooke Maidstone South East Maidstone Switch Youth New Water Heaters 1,212.14£     

Roger Gough Sevenoaks North & Darent Valley Sevenoaks Archbishop's Palace Trust in Otford Archbishop's Palace Restoration 2,000.00£     

Roger Gough Sevenoaks North & Darent Valley Sevenoaks Otford Parish Council Smart Access Gate for Otford Recreation Ground Tennis Court 2,050.16£     

P
age 21



Roger Gough Sevenoaks North & Darent Valley Sevenoaks Kent Highways Delivery of Farningham 20mph Scheme (part two) 6,000.00£     

Roger Gough Sevenoaks North & Darent Valley Sevenoaks Kent Highways Implementation of 20mph through Swanley Village 650.00£        

David Brazier Sevenoaks Rural North East Sevenoaks Ash Cum Ridley Parish Council Christmas Family Fun Day 1,000.00£     

David Brazier Sevenoaks Rural North East Sevenoaks Hartley Village Hall Trust Replacement Chairs 1,000.00£     

David Brazier Sevenoaks Rural North East Sevenoaks Friends of Fawkham Security Improvement of School Gates 1,106.28£     

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Leigh Parish Council Junior Litter Pickers 500.00£        

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Edenbridge Community Christmas Association (ECCA) Repair/Replace Gantry Wires 1,000.00£     

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Homestart South West Kent Volunteer Development (Jointly funded with Paul Stepto and Mark Hood) 1,000.00£     

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Eden Grows CIC Edenbridge Community Garden 750.00£        

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks New Edenbridge District Residents Association Water Quality Testing River Eden 1,200.00£     

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Edenbridge Town Council Edenbridge Market - Archway & Enhancements 1,447.81£     

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Edenbridge Town Council Promotional Infrastructure for Visit Edenbridge 2,000.00£     

Margot McArthur Sevenoaks Rural South Sevenoaks Kent Highways Edenbridge Gateways 4,245.29£     

Richard Streatfeild Sevenoaks Town Sevenoaks Knowle Paddock Residents Association Relaunch of Association 250.00£        

Richard Streatfeild Sevenoaks Town Sevenoaks Sevenoaks Summer Festival Festival Fair 2,000.00£     

Richard Streatfeild Sevenoaks Town Sevenoaks Sevenoaks Town Council Skateboarding & BMX Event at Greatness Recreation Ground, Sevenoaks 500.00£        

Richard Streatfeild Sevenoaks Town Sevenoaks Sevenoaks Town Team Sevenoaks Business Awards 2024 500.00£        

Richard Streatfeild Sevenoaks Town Sevenoaks West Kent Mind Activate Pilot (Jointly funded with Peter Oakford) 2,000.00£     

Nick Chard Sevenoaks West Sevenoaks Kent Highways Salt Bin in Marlborough Crescent, Riverhead 678.77£        

Nick Chard Sevenoaks West Sevenoaks Kent Highways Speed Reduction in Pootings with Westerham Town Council 15,000.00£   

Perry Cole Swanley Sevenoaks St Marys C of E (Voluntary Aided) Primary School Forest School Project 300.00£        

Perry Cole Swanley Sevenoaks Westview Playgroup Play equipment 503.00£        

Perry Cole Swanley Sevenoaks Hextable Parish Council Hextable Heritage Gardens Planting Scheme 1,825.00£     

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Faversham Town Council Printing costs for a free book for the community: A 2000 Year History of Black People in Faversham and East Kent 600.00£        

Antony Hook Faversham Swale 8th Faversham Scouts Installation of a smart screen in Scout Hall  £    2,500.00 

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Community Heritage Events Faversham Hop Festival 2024 500.00£        

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Faversham District Scout Council Shepherd Park Camp Fire Circles  £    2,500.00 

Antony Hook Faversham Swale GEM72 Faversham Gems Awards 2,000.00£     

Antony Hook Faversham Swale 6th/13th Faversham Scout Group Kitchen Refit/Floor 1,995.00£     

Antony Hook Faversham Swale West Faversham Community Association Signage for Recycling and Sensory Room 5,786.96£     

Antony Hook Faversham Swale QuEST at Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Trip costs for Asgard Project in Belgium 500.00£        

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Cinque Ports Rowing CIC Community Rowing and Boatbuilding Sessions in Faversham and East Kent 2,450.00£     

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Girlguiding Faversham Division New Unit Flags and May-Hem Event Fees 720.00£        

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Kent Tree and Pond Partnership Increasing tree provision in Faversham 653.00£        

Antony Hook Faversham Swale Faversham Strike Force FC New Parking Barrier 2,280.00£     

Andy Booth Sheppey Swale Sheerness East Youth Football Club Sheerness East Whippets Charity team Football Equipment  £    1,469.99 

Andy Booth Sheppey Swale Bluetown Remembered Improving Accessibility at the Heritage Centre (Funded jointly with Mike Whiting) 500.00£        

Andy Booth Sheppey Swale Minster (Sheppey) Cricket Club Footpath Lighting 1,983.00£     

Andy Booth Sheppey Swale Eastchurch Parish Council VE Day "Celebration of Peace" (Funded jointly with Mike Whiting) 3,800.46£     

Andy Booth Sheppey Swale Sheerness East Youth FC Eagles Football Kit and part funding of Goals 2,500.00£     

Andy Booth Sheppey Swale 5th Sheppey Scouts Outside lighting for camps and repair to roof on scout hut 1,223.96£     

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Sheerness County Youth Centre Chess Activity for young people 400.00£        

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Friendly Faces Of Kent After Dark Pilot Project  £    1,000.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Queenborough and District Naval Ensign Association Wildfire III Memorial Parade And Service 500.00£        

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale The Harmony Therapy Trust CIO HarmonyFest 2024 1,000.00£     

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Sheerness Town Team Seaside Festival 2024  £       500.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Eastchurch Parish Council VE Day "Celebration of Peace" (Funded jointly with Andy Booth) 150.00£        

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Citizens Advice Swale Laptop replacement (Funded jointly with John Wright) 671.00£        

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale East Kent Colleges (Sheerness School) Community/Dementia Café  £       250.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Bluetown Remembered Improving Accessibility at the Heritage Centre (Funded jointly with Andy Booth)  £       200.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Swale Community Care Project Sittingbourne Community Café (Funded jointly with John Wright)  £       250.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Swale Gloves Amateur Boxing Purchase of new equipment (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor and John Wright)  £       200.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale NexYouth Purchase of new equipment  £       400.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Men-Talk.UK CIC Men Talk support group  £       250.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Friendly Faces of Kent Friendly Faces Social Groups  £       250.00 

Mike Whiting Sheppey Swale Kent Highways Speed survey in Belgrave Road 85.00£          

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Nurture for All CIC Resources and equipment for nurture and wellbeing sessions (Funded jointly with John Wright and Rich Lehmann)  £       500.00 

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale New Leaf Support Male Wellbeing Project (Funded jointly with Rich Lehmann) 500.00£        

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Swale Community Leisure SCL Vision Awards (Funded jointly with John Wright) 500.00£        

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Sittingbourne Christmas Lights Association Installation of Christmas Lights and Switch On Day in High Street (Funded jointly with Mike Baldock and John Wright) 500.00£        

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Raybel Charters CIC Restoration of Sailing Barge Raybel 1,000.00£     

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Sittingbourne, Milton and District Scout Council Carbon footprint reduction with wildlife and reflection project (Funded jointly with John Wright) 1,000.00£     

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale All Saints Church Iwade Repair to Church Roof 1,000.00£     

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Sittingbourne FC Football Equipment 500.00£        

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale MS Swale Para-Bowls For All 1,000.00£     

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale SATEDA Heather House Community Hub 2,339.84£     

Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Swale Gloves Amateur Boxing Club Purchase of new equipment (Funded jointly with Mike Whiting and John Wright)  £    1,000.00 
Mike Dendor Sittingbourne North Swale Highways (Swale Borough Council) Drafting of Traffic Regulation Order Amendment, including informal consultations where required prior to drafting Order, for new double yellow lines. 3,230.00£     

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Tunstall Village Memorial Hall Extension to War Memorial  £    1,125.68 

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Nurture for All Resources and equipment for nurture and wellbeing sessions (Funded jointly with Rich Lehmann and Mike Dendor)  £    1,078.49 

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Citizens Advice Swale Laptop replacement (Funded jointly with Mike Whiting) 2,013.00£     

P
age 22



John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Swale Community Care Project Sittingbourne Community Café (Funded jointly with Mike Whiting) 100.00£        

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Kent Association for the Blind (KAB) KAB Sittingbourne Blind Fellowship Club 800.00£        

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Swale Community Leisure SCL Vision Awards (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor) 500.00£        

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Swale Gloves Amateur Boxing Club Purchase of new equipment (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor and Mike Whiting) 1,000.00£     

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Sittingbourne, Milton and District Scout Council Carbon footprint reduction with wildlife and reflection project (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor) 1,241.84£     

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Sittingbourne Christmas Lights Association Installation of Christmas Lights and Switch On Day in High Street (Funded jointly with Mike Baldock and Mike Dendor) 1,000.00£     

John Wright Sittingbourne South Swale Highways (Swale Borough Council) School Keep Clear Markings 515.00£        

Rich Lehman Swale East Swale Tunstall Village Hall Memorial Extension (Brickwork) 270.00£        

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Nurture For All CIC Resources and equipment for nurture and wellbeing sessions (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor and John Wright) 300.00£        

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Brogdale Collections New pruning ladders 350.00£        

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Citizens Advice Swale 2 Replacement laptops 671.00£        

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale New Leaf Support Male Wellbeing Project (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor) 300.00£        

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale 9th Sittingbourne (Tunstall and Wormshill) Scout Group Camp/Community Events 2024 (Funded jointly with Shellina Prendergast) 300.00£        

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Kent Highways A251 Sheldwich and Badlesmere Village Gateways  £    1,000.00 

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Kent Highways Contribution with Ospringe Parish Council - Brogdale Road, Ospringe - 30mph speed limit  £    1,500.00 

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Kent Highways Application for a new Village Hall direction sign – Painters Forstal  £       769.37 

Rich Lehmann Swale East Swale Kent Highways Light outside 36 Conyer Street, Teynham  £       147.21 

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale Hartlip Parish Council Hartlip Recreation Ground Improvements  £       500.00 

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale Hartlip Village Hall Installation of Replacement Defibrillator 1,500.00£     

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale Hartlip Parish Council Happy to Chat Community Space 3,000.00£     

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale All Saints Church Iwade Church Tower Repair Fund 1,500.00£     

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale Borden Parish Council Replacement of the Playstool Park Roundabout 1,716.00£     

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale Sittingbourne Christmas Lights Association Installation of Christmas Lights and Switch On Day in High Street (Funded jointly with Mike Dendor and John Wright) 350.00£        

Mike Baldock Swale West Swale Kent Highways Implementation of 20mph speed limit in School Lane, Iwade 1,000.00£     

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Sunken Garden Society Path restoration 600.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Westgate-on-Sea Town Council Poverty Alleviation Project 800.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet 1st Westgate-on-Sea Scout Group Legoland 2024 Trip 360.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet
St Nicholas at Wade Primary School Parent Teacher and Friend 
Association (PTFA) Library refresh (Jointly funded with Linda Wright) 300.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Scripture Union Minnis Bay Minnis Bay Holiday Club 500.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Mama to Mama Marketing and Training (Jointly funded with Linda Wright, Barry Lewis, Karen Constantine, Rosalind Binks and Trevor Shonk) 299.62£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Monkton Parish Council CCTV Upgrade 800.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Acol Parish Council Village Planters 125.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Deaf Friends Supporters London Museums visit 500.00£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Margate Sea Cadets Purchase of Eight Hardwood Oars 591.83£        

Derek Crow-Brown Birchington & Rural Thanet Heart in the Community CIC Winter Wellbeing Meal 300.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Manston Parish Council D-Day Beacon Lighting Event 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet All Saints Parish, Birchington Breakfast and Supper Clubs 1,000.00£     

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Westgate-on-Sea Town Council Poverty Alleviation Project 800.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Minster Parish Council Minster Public Convenience Improvements 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet St Nicolas at Wade Primary School Parent Teacher Friends Association 
(PTFA) 

Library refresh (Jointly funded with Derek Crow-Brown) 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Scripture Union Minnis Bay Minnis Bay Holiday Club 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet 2433 ATC Thanet Band equipment 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Thanet Big Sing Community Choir Canterbury Festival Community Music "Big Noise Day" 375.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet 1st Westgate-on-Sea Scout Group Replacing Camping Equipment 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Mama to Mama Marketing and Training (Jointly funded with Derek Crow-Brown, Barry Lewis, Karen Constantine, Rosalind Binks and Trevor Shonk) 300.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Acol Parish Council Upgrade of CCTV equipment 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Minster Parish Council Minster Shed Project - Materials/Consumables 500.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Westgate-on-Sea Town Council Redesign and rebuild of Lymington Road Skate Park 1,000.00£     

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Acol Parish Council Village Planters 703.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Westbrook Bowls Club Increased Community Participation 719.96£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Monkton Parish Council CCTV Upgrade 578.00£        

Linda Wright Birchington & Rural Thanet Garlinge Primary School and Nursery The Haven Mindfulness Garden 1,224.04£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet The Zone Youth Club, Broadstairs Resources and Youth Club experiences 1,550.00£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet GAP  - A Thanet Community Project Baby, Parents, & Toddler Group for Children with Down’s Syndrome 1,050.00£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet Mama to Mama Marketing and Training (Jointly funded with Linda Wright, Derek Crow-Brown, Barry Lewis, Karen Constantine and Trevor Shonk) 300.00£        

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet Sarah Thorne Theatre Two New Pantomime Scenic Cloths 1,000.00£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet Ramsgate International Film Festival Ramsgate International Film Festival 2024 (Jointly funded with Karen Constantine and Trevor Shonk) 300.00£        

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet The Zone Youth Club, Broadstairs Resources and Youth Club experiences 1,450.00£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet Sammy's Foundation Pilot Programme 1,377.00£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet Inspiration Creative CIC Inclusive Youth drama groups – 2025 theatre project 1,000.00£     

Rosalind Binks Broadstairs Thanet Kent Highways Bollard in Albion Street, Broadstairs 650.00£        

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Friends of Botany Bay CIC Community Fruit Project 1,000.00£     

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet The Margate School Art & Design Saturday Club 1,015.00£     

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet GRASS Cliftonville CIC Community Easter Egg event 467.90£        

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet The Margate School Margate Festival of Design 2024 1,000.00£     

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Mama to Mama Marketing and Training 300.00£        

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet ARK - Cliftonville Cultural Space Mural project 999.62£        

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Friends of Botany Bay CIC Roadside Verges Pollinator Project 1,000.00£     

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Don't Miss Out CIC Don't Miss Margate Podcast 500.00£        

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Art Education Exchange Creative Therapies 1,000.00£     

Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Newgate Gap CIC FLINTS Project Space Essential Repairs 1,000.00£     

P
age 23



Lesley Game Cliftonville Thanet Kitchen Social & Cookery Club CIC Project Wellness & Wellbeing 1,500.00£     

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Phoenix Community Events CIC Shakespeare on the Beach 2024 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Millmead Children’s Centre Partnership Limited Holiday food programme 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Eudaimonia Social Lounge 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Wilderness to Wonderland Welcome to Margate Boulevard Community Gardens sign 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet ARK - Cliftonville Cultural Space Hands on Hearts 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Looping the Loop CIC Thanet Youth Theatre 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet The Margate Bookie The Margate Bookie LitFest 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Bon Volks CIC Swift Project Community Weekend 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Margate Carnival Group Margate Carnival 300.00£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Mama to Mama Marketing and training (Jointly funded with Linda Wright, Derek Crow-Brown, Karen Constantine, Rosalind Binks and Trevor Shonk) 300.38£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet ARK - Cliftonville Cultural Space Mural project 300.38£        

Barry Lewis Margate Thanet Bon Volks CIC Bon Volks CIC 300.00£        

Karen Constantine Ramsgate Thanet Ramsgate International Film Festival Ramsgate International Film Festival 2024 (Jointly funded with Rosalind Binks and Trevor Shonk) 500.00£        

Karen Constantine Ramsgate Thanet Residents Association of Paradise in association with Ramsgate Historic 
Quarter Scheme

Captain Abbotts Garden 750.00£        

Karen Constantine Ramsgate Thanet Ramsgate Festival of Sound CIC Family Day at Ellington Park 1,000.00£     

Karen Constantine Ramsgate Thanet Aim4 Partnerships CIC Newington's Chill Club 500.00£        

Karen Constantine Ramsgate Thanet Mama to Mama Marketing and Training (Jointly funded with Linda Wright, Derek Crow-Brown, Barry Lewis, Rosalind Binks and Trevor Shonk) 300.00£        

Karen Constantine Ramsgate Thanet Kent Association for the Blind Reflections Club (Ramsgate) 550.00£        

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Ramsgate International Film Festival Ramsgate International Film Festival 2024 (Jointly funded with Karen Constantine and Rosalind Binks) 500.00£        

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet 1st Lawrence Scouts & 6th Ramsgate Scouts Scout Hut Improvements 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Mama to Mama Training and Marketing (Jointly funded with Linda Wright, Derek Crow-Brown, Barry Lewis, Karen Constantine and Rosalind Binks) 300.00£        

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Parish of St Laurence in the Isle of Thanet Security improvements for St Christophers Church 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Ramsgate Skatepark Project Warre Rec Basketball Court Refurbishment 2,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Cliffsend Youth Group Cliffsend Youth Club 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet East Kent Mencap GOLD flooring project 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Pie Factory Music Refreshments for workshop activities 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Thanet Salvation Army Evening Meals for those attending Kids Club and Youth Club 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Social Enterprise Kent CIC SE Kitchen - Social Supermarket 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Foreland Fields Charity Sensory Room upgrade 1,000.00£     

Trevor Shonk Ramsgate Thanet Thanet Thunderers Boccia Club Ramsgate Boccia Pairs Tournament 1,197.00£     

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling East Malling Centre Community Supermarket & Lunch Club food Storage 2,315.98£     

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling Larkfield & New Hythe Football Club Purchase of new equipment 500.00£        

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling Larkfield Community Group Equipment for Local Community Group 2,000.00£     

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling Communigrow Field Shelter-Pond area 1,000.00£     

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling Town Malling Cricket Club Security Upgrades 1,000.00£     

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council Speed Watch Equipment 1,454.02£     

Trudy Dean, MBE Malling Central Tonbridge & Malling Kent Highways Consultation & Design of 20mph zone in East Malling 7,850.00£     

Sarah Hohler Malling North Tonbridge & Malling Snodland Town Council Christmas in Snodland 2024 3,000.00£     

Sarah Hohler Malling North Tonbridge & Malling Ryarsh Parish Council Installation of a Noticeboard 1,000.00£     

Sarah Hohler Malling North Tonbridge & Malling Friends of Offham School Renovation of Offham Primary School playground 2,500.00£     

Sarah Hohler Malling North Tonbridge & Malling Kent Highways Improved signage at Comp Lane crossroads 3,000.00£     

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Bluebell Hill Village Hall Repair & restoration of PA System 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Ditton C of E Junior School New playground gym equipment 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Character Education Trust t/a Aylesford School Dementia Cafe run by school 500.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling 1st Aylesford Scouts Cooking Equipment 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Aylesford Football Club New sports kit for the Under 9 Girls Team 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling 60+ Club Senior Citizens Xmas Lunch 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Walderslade Baptist Church Youth Club Youth Club Camp 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Burham Parish Council Equipment for Photography Group 500.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Ditton Heritage Centre LTD Shelving & Storage for Container 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Wouldham Parish Council Wouldham Youth Club 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Kent Search & Rescue (KSAR) Incident Support Vehicle 500.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Burham CE Primary Development of Early Years Foundatio Stage (EYFS) Outside Area 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Ditton Bowls Club Canopy for Bowls Club 300.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling St Peter & St Pauls Church Aylesford Dementia Café (Jointly funded with Tom Cannon) 150.00£        

Andrew Kennedy Malling North East Tonbridge & Malling Aylesford Christmas Market Aylesford Christmas Market 300.00£        

Sarah Hudson Malling Rural East Tonbridge & Malling Hadlow Historical Society Updated Archive Storage Cabinets 550.00£        

Sarah Hudson Malling Rural East Tonbridge & Malling Kings Hill Parish Council Community Bike Fix 300.00£        

Sarah Hudson Malling Rural East Tonbridge & Malling Wateringbury Primary School CCTV & Shed to protect Forest School area & equipment 3,009.00£     

Sarah Hudson Malling Rural East Tonbridge & Malling Kent Highways Installation of an ANPR camera to measure HGV volumes on Addlestead Road and Snoll Hatch Room in East Peckham 1,140.00£     

Harry Rayner Malling West Tonbridge & Malling Hildenborough Parish Council Dropped Kerbs Installation 1,500.00£     

Harry Rayner Malling West Tonbridge & Malling Hildenborough Parish Council OPAL (outdoor play & learning) Project for Hildenborough CE Primary School 1,250.00£     

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling South East Open Studios Open Studios June 2024 499.57£        

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling The Six in One Community Association Defibrillator (Jointly funded with Paul Stepto) 426.50£        

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Domestic Abuse Volunteer Support Services (DAVVS) Office move to Five Oak Green 979.20£        

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Tribe Digital Media CIC River Walk Music Event (Jointly funded with Paul Stepto) 500.00£        

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Homestart South West Kent Volunteer Development (Jointly funded with Margot McArthur and Paul Stepto) 500.00£        

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling KCC Public Rights of Way and Access Service Improvement of disabled access to St Stephen's Church public footpath MU42 (Jointly funded with Paul Stepto) 2,740.48£     

Mark Hood Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Kent Highways Trees for Tonbridge High Street 10,000.00£   

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Tonbridge Pride Tonbridge Pride - toilet hire 1,020.00£     

P
age 24



Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Juvenile Arthritis Research Family Support 500.00£        

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling The Six in One Community Association Defibrillator (Jointly funded with Mark Hood) 440.00£        

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Kent Music West Kent Youth Orchestra 500.00£        

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Tribe Digital Media CIC River Walk Music Event (Jointly funded with Mark Hood) 500.00£        

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Homestart South West Kent Volunteer Development (Jointly funded with Margot McArthur and Mark Hood) 500.00£        

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling KCC Public Rights of Way and Access Service Improvement of disabled access to ST Stephens Church Public Footpath MU42 (Jointly funded with Mark Hood) 863.13£        

Paul Stepto Tonbridge Tonbridge & Malling Kent Highways Trees for Tonbridge High Street 10,000.00£   

Seán Holden Cranbrook Tunbridge Wells Benenden Parish Council Replacement Flag Pole 1,500.00£     

Paul Barrington-King Tunbridge Wells East Tunbridge Wells Firefly Dance School Dance World Cup 2024 Prague 1,000.00£     

Paul Barrington-King Tunbridge Wells East Tunbridge Wells St Mary's Ukrainian School Art materials & gymnastic equipment 900.00£        

Paul Barrington-King Tunbridge Wells East Tunbridge Wells Pembury Baptist Church Pass Through Dishwasher Replacement 1,000.00£     

Paul Barrington-King Tunbridge Wells East Tunbridge Wells Kent High Weald Partnership Forest School Site Enhancement Project 927.50£        

Paul Barrington-King Tunbridge Wells East Tunbridge Wells Tunbridge Wells Sea Cadets Phase Two Building Works to the Sea Cadet Building (Jointly funded with Sarah Hamilton, Peter Oakford, James McInroy and Beckie Bruneau) 7,800.00£     

Peter Oakford Tunbridge Wells North Tunbridge Wells Firefly Dance School Dance World Cup 2024 Prague 2,000.00£     

Peter Oakford Tunbridge Wells North Tunbridge Wells Tunbridge Wells Sea Cadets Phase Two Building Works (Jointly funded with Paul Barrington-King, Sarah Hamilton, James McInroy and Becki Bruneau) 2,000.00£     

Peter Oakford Tunbridge Wells North Tunbridge Wells West Kent Mind Activate project for young people (Jointly funded with Richard Streatfield) 2,000.00£     

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Capel Parish Council Replacement Doors for Public Toilets 1,000.00£     

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Firefly Dance School Dance World Cup 2024 Prague 300.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Paddock Wood Proms Paddock Wood Proms 1,000.00£     

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Paddock Wood & District Lions Club Paddock Wood Carnival 2024 500.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells The Decimus Burton Society Architectural Roadshow Event 500.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Lamberhurst Bonfire Society Bonfire Night 290.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Compaid Charity Rebranding 2,000.00£     

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Paddock Wood Lights Up Lights Up 2024 500.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Heritage Paddock Wood Scanning of photographic slides of local historic importance 545.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Trinity Theatre & Arts Centre Ltd Auditorium heating replacement 916.00£        

Sarah Hamilton Tunbridge Wells Rural Tunbridge Wells Tunbridge Wells Sea Cadets Phase Two Building Works (Jointly funded with Paul Barrington-King, Peter Oakford, James McInroy and Becki Bruneau) 200.00£        

Becki Bruneau Tunbridge Wells South Tunbridge Wells Tunbridge Wells Sea Cadets Phase Two Building Works to the Sea Cadet Building  (Jointly finded with Paul Barrington-King, Sarah Hamilton, Peter Oakford and James McInroy 500.00£        

Becki Bruneau Tunbridge Wells South Tunbridge Wells Kent Highways Feasibility study in Cornford Lane 19,400.00£   

James McInroy Tunbridge Wells West Tunbridge Wells Bidborough C of E Primary School Multi Use Games Area 6,667.00£     

James McInroy Tunbridge Wells West Tunbridge Wells Tunbridge Wells Sea Cadets Phase Two Building Works to the Sea Cadet Building (Jointly funded with Paul Barrington-King, Sarah Hamilton, Peter Oakford and Becki Bruneau) 10,033.00£   

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 4 September 2025
	4 Committee Review
	Appendix 1 - Electoral and Member Arrangements Committee - Draft ToR
	Responsibilities

	Appendix 2 - Planning and Regulation Committee - Draft ToR

	5 2024/25 Combined Member Grant Report
	Appendix - Combined Member Grant Recipient List 2024-25


